City of
ASHINGTON 1 ERRACE
Uk

Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, April 21, 2026
5249 South 400 East
Washington Terrace, UT 84405
801.393.8681

www.washingtonterrace.gov

As a public service, Council Meetings are streamed on the City of Washington Terrace YouTube channel at :
www.youtube.com/(@WashingtonTerraceCity

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PERMISSION NOTICE

By attending this meeting/event, you consent to the use of your photograph, voice, likeness, and image in broadcasts of this
meeting/event, and in subsequent productions drawn from video or audio recordings of this meeting/event, in the sole and
absolute discretion of the City of Washington Terrace. The city retains copyright for all video and audio recordings. Video and
audio recordings may not be modified, manipulated, or distributed in any way without the express written consent of the City
Manager.

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
1.1 PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: FY 2026-27 TENTATIVE BUDGET AND
FY 2028-31 BUDGET PLAN

Staff will present the budget adoption timeline and significant assumptions that will be used in shaping the FY
2026-27 Tentative Budget and FY 2028-2031 Budget Plan. A timeline of the budget process will be presented.

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME

S. CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND APRIL 7,2026, COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AND APRIL 14, 2026, COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the agenda or the order of the agenda needs to be addressed here
prior to the approval of the agenda. Minutes approved in open meeting become the official record

6. SPECIAL ORDER

Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, questions by Council,
Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then Council final discussion.

6.1 PUBLIC HEARING: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
SECOND PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR CITIZEN INPUT CONCERNING THE
PROJECT THAT WAS AWARDED UNDER THE 2026 COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



10.

11.

12.

13.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes. “Washington Terrace City is committed to
civility. We strive to act and speak with dignity, courtesy, and respect at all times. All are asked to join us, and act and

speak accordingly.”
NEW BUSINESS
8.1 MOTION: APPOINTMENT OF PLANNING COMMISSIONER
The Mayor will appoint an applicant to the Planning Commission to serve a four-year term with Council Consent.
8.2 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL TO AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT FOR 2026 STREET MAINTENANCE PROJECTS
Sealed bids were opened on April 14, 2026. The project entails road surface treatments throughout the city.
8.3 MOTION/ RESOLUTION 26-04: APPROVAL OF THE MUNICIPAL
WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM REPORT
The Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) requires the City to implement the Utah Sewer
Management Program. The Resolution will approve the self-assessment report for 2025
8.4 PRESENTATION: ANIMAL CONTROL QUARTERLY REPORT
8.5 PRESENTATION: SHERIFF OFFICE QUARTERLY REPORT

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken.

ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items.

UPCOMING EVENTS

April 30" : Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m.

May 5% : City Council Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and City Council Meeting ( 6:00 p.m.)
May 5" : RDA Meeting following the regular meeting

May 19" : City Council Work Session (5:00 p.m.) City Council Meeting (6:00p.m.)
May 25 : City Offices closed in observance of Memorial Day

May 28%": Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. (Tentative)

ADJOURN THE MEETING

WORK SESSION  (Immediately following the regular meeting)

Topics to include; but are not limited to: Building Permit Inspection Fees

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at

801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



0N DN B W N

DO = = = e e e e e e
S OO0 1N N B Wi —= OO

N BN
N —

A BA BA DB DB PHS WWWLWLWWWLWWWLWRNDNDNDDNDNDNDDN
DN B W — OOV JIANWUN P WND—OWOLOIN N S~ W

City of Washington Terrace

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting
Held on April 17, 2026
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Anna Davidson

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan
Council Member Cheryl Parkinson

Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas - excused
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett

Fire Chief Clay Peterson

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

OTHERS PRESENT:
None

1. WORK SESSION : 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include; but are not limited to:
- Fire Department Heavy Equipment Capital Replacement Plan

Hanson stated that the Building Fees were adjusted based on the work session conversation at the last
meeting. They will be presented at the regular meeting.

Fire Department

Chief Peterson stated that he re-vamped how the Department administers the equipment replacement plan.
He stated that replacement is based upon age, maintenance, funding options, usage, mileage, among other
factors.

Chief Peterson stated that the funding is not available for the ladder replacement in 2027, and it has been
pushed out to 2028. He stated that building a unit takes around 3-5 years.

Chief stated that a good percentage of Fire Equipment has been awarded through grants. He stated that the
future grant funding is unsure at this time.

Chief Peterson explained that a ladder truck is necessary due to the tall story buildings that are coming into
the city. He stated that the ladder will function the same regardless of bells and whistles. He stated that the
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) will go before Council tonight for approval to move ahead and funding
options will be decided later on through the plan. Hanson stated that the intent is to put place markers on
replacement equipment so that a strategic funding plan can be discussed. He stated that at this time funding
options have not been discussed beyond grants.

a plan. She

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
84
&5
86
87
88
&9
90
91

stated that there is a plan, however, the timeframes of some of the equipment and dollar amounts have
changed so much necessitate the plan to come before Council at this time.

Chief Peterson stated that a new apparatus has coverage included. He stated that buying a used apparatus
comes with unknowns and risks. Chief Peterson stated that he built inflation into his projections. Chief
Peterson stated that it depends on Council as to how old an apparatus can be for used purchase.

Chief Peterson confirmed that Council would be approving the plan priorities, not the funding or purchase
of the equipment.

Garrett stated that the items are essential items, not “nice to have”. She stated that grant or no grant, the
items will need to be replaced. She stated that Council agreeing to the five-year plan, she can start building
it into the plan and can begin advising Council on how to fund the items. She stated that the decisions today
will set us up for the future. She stated that these are marching orders for her. She stated that approval is not
locking Council into anything, but the plan will be used as a guiding tool as to how to plan the funding.

Chief Peterson stated that the wear-and-tear on equipment can be very costly. He stated that there is a 20-25
life span on a ladder truck. He stated that our current 2002 ladder truck was bought used. Garrett stated that
we purchased the truck in 2015 for $220,000.

Chief Peterson stated that the five-year CIP summary shows the ladder truck in 2028, and the SCBA is
scheduled for 2030. He stated that the radios are scheduled to be replaced in 2032. He stated that the skid
unit can be taken off and put onto a new chassis platform in 2033. He stated that there are too many variables
to go out any further.

Garrett stated that she may not be prepared to make a recommendation in the coming months on the ladder
truck, however, she feels confident that she should be able to make recommendations on the other items in
the plan. Garrett stated that the buy in on the five-year plans give her the marching orders to build them into
the budget or see if we need to go out for other types of funding.

Law Enforcement

Hanson stated that there was an internal audit done at the County. He stated that the County Commissioners
will be reducing the number of officers in the general fund by four units and the Sheriff will be increasing
theirs by six. He stated that the Commission is set on the reduction, and they do not seem interested that the
audit report was not completed. He stated that the report was not complete to plan from.

Hanson stated that he should receive the preliminary numbers from the Sheriff tomorrow and anticipates
that the numbers will be a little softer than before. He stated that it may be a 22 percent Truth in Taxation
increase. Hanson stated that he reached out to Riverdale and will reach out to Ogden to see if they want to
take care of our law enforcement needs.

Hanson stated that there are benefits to being a contract city and taking advantage of all of the services. He
stated that we receive a lot of services for our money. Council Member Zishan stated that he recognizes the
benefit that we receive from the County, but he stated that their pay schedule may become too unaffordable.

Mayor Allen stated that they met with the School District today on percentage of payment for School
Resource Officers (SRO). Hanson stated that we are asking the District to pay 100 percent of the 70 percent
of the time the SRO are in session. Hanson stated that we are not asking them to pay for the time the officers

are not in school. Hanson stated that the School District does not want to pay their full freight. He stated that

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

the District is not interested in moving the funding to the general fund.

Hanson stated that the contract entities pay the freight for SRO’s. He stated that the residents will pay either
way, either through our TNT or the School District TNT. Hanson stated that essentially all property tax is
paying for law enforcement.

Hanson stated that we are moving forward in preparation with the numbers that we currently have.

Garrett stated that we are preparing for Truth in Taxation Process. She stated that the start date has been
pushed up this legislation session. Garrett stated that the 22 percent spoken of earlier is based off the 2025
assessed value calculation. She stated that it is based off of the February numbers from the Sheriff. She
stated that she believes that the final numbers will be plus or minus 3 percent. She stated that we will not
receive our numbers until June. She noted that we do not receive our rates until late June. She stated that
we will be using estimates going through the process.

Council Member Parkinson asked if we could look at our budget and determine what we can cut to help with
the numbers. She stated that there are some things that don’t make a difference in the budget.

Council Member Zishan stated that the economy is bad right now. He suggested taking the $600,000 that
we will receive in October to buy us time. Garrett stated that one-time monies will compound the ongoing
cost. She stated that the cost will continue to rise and within three years we will be three years behind.
Council Member Zishan stated that if we could use some of the monies to buy us time to cover this year and
have a plan for next year. Mayor Allen stated that the County Commission has been kicking the can down
the road and now we have a problem. He stated that we knew this outcome was coming for two years and
have been planning. He stated that the Commission raised the amount more than was discussed.

Council Member Parkinson asked if the $600,00 can be used for fire equipment. Garrett stated that the
Council earmarked the funds for parks and we have leveraged some of those funds against grants.

She stated that the earmark can be moved. She stated that we are in the phases of the budget season and
would like to work on bringing back some more information.

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157

158
159
160
161

162
163
164

165
166

167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184

MAYOR., COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Anna Davidson

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

Council Member Cheryl Parkinson

Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas - excused.
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Lt. Sean Endsley, Weber County Sheriff

OTHERS PRESENT:

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME

5. CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MARCH 17, 2026, COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES
Item 5.1 is approved by general consent.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS
There were no citizen comments.

7. RECURRING BUSINESS

Recurring Business are agenda items that have previously been brought to Council for discussion

7.1 MOTION/RESOLUTION 26-03: TO AMEND BUILDING PERMIT INSPECTION
FEES

Garrett stated that the resolution addresses the direction from Council to change the base fee to eliminate
the reinspection fee. She stated that staff are proposing for the fee to reflect the total actual service cost.
She stated that the reinspection or no-show fee is new, and it is proposed at $50.00.
Garrett stated that the specialized inspection is an inspection that is required by law to have a minimum of
two inspections. Council Member Zishan stated that we have not increased our fees in over two decades.
He stated that he understands that $47.00 is under cost but would rather implement the fees in phases as to
not overburden people with dumping major fees changes upon them.

Council Member Zishan asked if a surrounding city comparison was completed. Garrett stated that the
Building Inspector spoke on surrounding cities at the work session, but was unsure if he had

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210

211
212

213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230

communicated the results in writing. Council Member Zishan asked to table the item for more discussion.
Mayor Allen stated that he recognizes the concern that the fees are higher and he considered a phase in of
the fee as an option as well, but he understands that we have not raised fees in over 20 years. He stated that
kicking the fees down the road will compound the issue. Council Member West stated that the fees are not
affecting all residents, just those who are using the service. He stated that he doesn’t know how we could
phase in an increase because someone putting on a roof this year will not be paying a fee next year. He
stated that the residents using it next year will have a higher price so it would be the same concern next
year. Council Member Zishan suggested a four-year phase in approach.

Mayor Allen stated that his idea of phasing is a two-year approach.

Garrett stated that staff are looking at the data so that the programs cover the cost of the service being
used. She stated that staff follow Council Priorities to remain fiscally responsible. She noted that Council
directed staff to find ways to pay for specialized services by having the resident using the service pay for
the cost of that service and not have other residents subsidize their service.

She stated that a lot of the permits are pulled through contractors, however, some residents pull their own
permits. She stated that we could put a notice out to inform residents.

Garrett stated that the fees that are being considered are for “over the counter” types of permits, not new
construction. Council Member West stated that he likes the idea of postponing the effective date to give
people notice to plan. Council Member West stated that we cannot continue to subsidize, however, he
would like to postpone until August.

Council Member Parkinson stated that if the fees are not covered by people using the service, all residents
will be taking on the responsibility of paying for the service through taxes. She stated that she is hesitant
to agree to wait on implementation. She stated that the reality is that 99 percent of the residents do not
know these fees exist until they go to get their permit.

Garrett stated that the fee schedule can go into effect at a date of Council’s choosing.

Council Member Zishan asked for a work session to discuss the city comparison information and review
the fee suggestions.

Motion by Council Member Zishan
Seconded by Council Member Parkinson
To table the resolution 26-03
For further discussion through a work session
Approved (4-0)

A tentative work session is scheduled for after the meeting on April 21* pending completion of the city
comparison report.

8. NEW BUSINESS

8.1 PRESENTATION: FIRE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT
Chief Peterson stated that the department still has 32 percent of calls going to nursing homes.
He stated that he has seen a large increase in wildland and grass fires due to the dry and hot season. Chief
Peterson stated that Council could consider options for fireworks and fire prohibition this year. He stated
that we cannot legally ban fireworks throughout the entire city, but areas can be discussed and no-fire bans
can be put in place. He stated that no smoking outside of cars or homes could be a consideration.
Chief Peterson stated that there is a 5K this Saturday and it will affect Ridgeline avenue and Golden West

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240

241
242

243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273

274
275
276

Credit Union.
Chief Peterson stated that there will be an Emergency Preparedness Fair on May 2™ from 10:00-2:00 at the
West Stake. The Fire Department will be participating in the Fair.

8.2 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE FIRE DEPARTMENT MAJOR
BUDGET ITEMS 5 YEAR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT PRIORITY PLAN
Chief Peterson stated that he is asking for approval of the five-year capital plan replacement plan which
was discussed in the work session and is explained in the packet so that we can put place markers in the
budget and strategize funding options moving forward.
Council Member West stated that the plan was discussed earlier at the work session and wanted to note to
those not in attendance that the first replacement item is not due until 2028.

Motion by Council Member West
Seconded by Council Member Parkinson
To approve the Fire Department Major Budget Items
Five Year Capital Replacement Priority Plan
Approved unanimously (4-0)

9. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF
Council Member Davidson stated that Grava did a great job with the Easter Egg Hunt and appreciates all
the hard work in organizing the event.

Council Member Zishan stated that Victory Park looks open and looks great. Hanson stated that the
Ribbon Cutting Ceremony will be held on April 15" at 6:00 p.m.

Council Member Parkinson also expressed appreciation to Grava and his team, plus the Bonneville
Students who helped fill the eggs for the event. She stated that it is a very well attended event and
appreciated the great job of the kind Easter Bunny.

Council Member Parkinson stated that residents are concerned with water conservation and reminded staff
to be mindful with our city water use. Hanson stated that he wants to make sure that people do not use
their culinary to water the lawn until the secondary water comes on.

Council Member West stated that there were a lot of people enjoying Victory Park and agreed that it
looked great.

10. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

Hanson stated that he and Grava expressed appreciation to the RAMP Board. He stated that the RAMP
grant funding is a county wide effort. He stated that we are fortunate to have a clean application process to
make better projects as a result of the funding pulled from the entire county.

Hanson stated that the Public Works Shop is open 7:00am-3:30pm for Green Waste drop off through
April. He stated that the curbside pickup service is April 20-24". Hanson stated that the Rohmer Park
Spring Cleanup service project will be on April 25™.

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299

300
301

11. UPCOMING EVENTS
April 7% Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
April 11%: Golden West 5K Run-for-Schools event 8:30 a.m.
April 14% : Special Council Work Session 5:00 p.m.
April 20-24": Spring Green Waste Curbside Pick-up
April 1-30" : Spring Green Waste Drop-off (7:00 a.m.- 3:30 p.m. Sundays excluded)
April 21%: Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.) — tentative
April 22-24%"; Utah League of Cities and Towns Conference- St. George
April 25" Rohmer Spring Clean Up 8-11a.m.
April 30" Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. (tentative)

12. ADJOURN THE MEETING

Motion by Council Member Parkinson
Seconded by Council Member Davidson
To adjourn the meeting
Approved unanimously (4-0)
Time: 6:49 p.m.

Date Approved City Recorder

+

CC Minutes 04-07-2026



0N N R W N

[\ T N T NG T NG T NG T N T N T N T S e S N Y
NN N R WD OOVO NN DA W —= O O

NS R\
Nelob]

B PSP DD WWLWLWWWWWWWW
DN b W~ OOV INWUN K WD —O

City of Washington Terrace

Minutes of a Special City Council Work Session
Held on April 14, 2026
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Anna Davidson

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

Council Member Cheryl Parkinson

Council Member Jeff West — arrived at 5:50 p.m.

Council Member Michael Thomas

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

OTHERS PRESENT:
None

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
PRESENTATION: FY 2027 TENTATIVE BUDGET AND FY 2028-31 BUDGET PLAN
Topics to Include. But are not Limited to:

e Major Budget Priorities
e Truth in Taxation considerations

Hanson reviewed the Vision and Mission Statement from the Council Retreat. He reviewed the SWOT
exercise and the Council Policies and Priorities, noting that the budget items all link to the priorities set by
the Council. Hanson stated that Major Budget Priorities are the items in the budget that have the greatest
impact on the budget.

Hanson stated that we balance service levels with our capacity to pay. Hanson stated that staff do a lot of
work to balance our capital needs with grant funding. He stated that it is a good tool for one-time use, but
not a good tool for ongoing expenses.

Public Safety
Hanson stated that law enforcement will be changing this year. Hanson explained the contract entities

process on how they are charged. He stated it is 60 percent calls for service and 40 percent in population,
which increased our obligation for law enforcement. He stated that as other cities grow, they are picking
up the burden, allowing a softening on our side. Council Member Parkinson stated that she is concerned
that we have a high call for services. She stated that what is happening in our city is causing high volume
of calls. Hanson stated that staffing levels should make it possible for more proactive policing within the

Work session Minutes 04-14-26



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
84
&5
86
87
88
&9
90

city. Mayor Allen noted that we have four schools within our city limits. He stated that homes and people
in close proximity typically have higher incidents of crime activity.

Hanson stated that the new Sheriff numbers are estimated at $1,335,522. He stated that it is a lower
amount first quoted to the city. Hanson stated that the county will do a true-up on the gap. He stated that
we are anticipating a 7% increase annually to keep up with inflation.

Hanson stated that he could research to see if it makes sense to contract with Ogden City for services. He
stated that he has not reached out to South Ogden. He stated that the county projected 5% annual increases.
Garrett stated that it has been difficult to get averaging out of this contract, as it has been many years of
non-consistent increases. She stated that we are at the mercy of the market and inflation any time we
outsource services. Garrett stated that 7% would include the whole package (personnel, fleet, equipment,
etc.).

Hanson stated that there is a shift from General Fund to contract entities for operations. He explained that
it is an overlapping service within the county. Hanson stated that citizens pay into the county for General
Fund operations, which include some law enforcement. He stated that on top of that, the contract entities
pay for a higher level of service that is over the level of service than the general fund services.

Hanson stated that the contract entities are picking up four officers from the general fund services, plus an
additional six officers who will be hired into the system. Council Member Zishan asked how the
additional officers, or elevated services, are clearly defined. Hanson stated that we would have a more
robust response as we have more personnel actively in our area. Hanson stated that the intent is that the
contract cities are served in proportion as to what we are asking for as contract cities.

Garrett stated that she did a ten-year average of the contract prices over the last ten years. Garrett stated
that to get to the same price point that is proposed, the contract would have increased 5.7 every year. She
stated that there is an annual true-up. She stated that if there is a one-time need for equipment, it is put into
the contract for that year. She noted that the price will drop as the one-time need is no longer needed. She
wanted Council to be mindful of the ups and downs of the contract prices.

Hanson stated that this amount will be in the tentative budget. Mayor Allen stated that the amount may
decrease slightly if the SRO amount changes.

Garrett stated that she took our last budget that we had for our own law enforcement. She used the
assumption of a 5 percent increase through 2017, and then percent from then on.
She stated that Washington Terrace PD would be at 3.7 million a year if we had kept our own department.

Hanson stated that there is a link to Truth-in Taxation for this funding source.

Fire and EMS

Hanson stated that the City worked on a study for a Fire District with South Ogden, Roy, and Riverdale
and it was concluded that the cost was higher than the sustainable approach that we are using for our Fire
Department. Hanson stated that if we cannot continue with the Volunteer Fire Department, the costs will
be substantially higher.

Council Member Parkinson asked how much of an increase will be built into the budget for the Fire
Department. Garrett stated that there will be a compiled budget in the Tentative Budget at the May 5

Work session Minutes 04-14-26



91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135

meeting. She stated that it has not been bundled as of yet. Hanson stated that we try to work within our
pressure points (fees, sales tax, property taxes).

i’ark Capital Improvements

Council Member Zishan stated that he believes that we should use funds to maintain equipment and parks
that we already have but does not think we should fund any new projects like the Rohmer Park Project
right now when other capital is needed. Council Member Parkinson stated that Council would have to
decide what would have to be cut to allow for other projects to be funded.

Hanson stated that the five-year plan for Park Improvements is modest. He stated that we will be finishing
up Phase four at Rohmer Park. Hanson stated that Little Rohmer will have to have maintenance soon. He
stated that they are budgeted with the assumption that we will use grants.

Garrett noted that the plan that Council approved has a new addition of a Food Truck park at the Fire
House Park. Council Member Zishan stated that we would have to generate enough people and interest in
the park for food trucks. Council Member Davidson stated that we could potentially bring people into the
city to spend money who may not normally come into the city. Council Member West asked how
conservative can we be in creating the park and still have an area that would bring people in.

Garrett stated that $38,00 of the funds earmarked for Parks has been used to match monies with grants.
She stated that the remaining $611,000 balance will be used to help match the RAMP grants for the
projects that have not yet been completed. Council Member Zishan stated that he rather the one-time
monies generated by the sale of property be used for something that we need, and not a “want”. Garrett
stated that the budget assumes that the park projects will partially be funded through grants. She noted that
the Fire Equipment is not a want, it is a need.

Human Resources

Hanson stated that Human Resources is coming in fairly comfortable in how things are boiling down.
Hanson stated that we need to stay competitive to recruit and retain the best employees.

Hanson stated that we are looking at 3.5 percent increase in wages. He stated that our benefits package has
increased by 6 percent.

Rodriguez stated that the increases are in alignment with the national wage gains (4.1%), noting that
Weber County wage gains exceeded national levels and were (5.1%). Rodriguez stated that nothing
unexpected occurred with the analysis this year. She stated that there was only one added item to the
compensation analysis, which was the addition of a permanent crossing guard at 5000 S and 300 W.
Rodriguez stated that a temporary guard was included in the budget last year because of the construction of
Roosevelt EIm. Council had approved to continue the position through this fiscal year and then determine
if they wanted to keep the position. Rodriguez stated that the position would add a new on-going cost of
$7,628 for FY 27 and then possible increases each year after. Council determined that the extra crossing
guard is in a good location, as the intersection is a busy intersection. They determined that the cost is worth
the positive effects that it would have on the community and would be seen as a benefit.

Utilities
Garrett stated that utilities pay for themselves, noting that water fees pay for water, sewer fees pay for
sewer and so on.

Work session Minutes 04-14-26



136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180

Waste Management and Recycling

Garrett stated that there are three main cost drivers in Garbage and Recycling: Waste Collections, Waste
Removal and Personnel and Overhead. Garret stated that our contract is expected to increase 5%., noting
that the rates are subject to the Water Sewer Trash Index. Garrett stated that the fuel surcharge recovery
fees will be addressed as needed, noting that no one knows how long we will see the elevated duel prices.
Mayor Allen stated that we are going to keep the Weber Transfer Station Open for at least one more year.
He stated that he was at meetings with Waste Management, Ogden Transfer Stations, and Republic
Services. He stated that we have a competitive price for waste removal. It is unclear what will happen with
waste removal moving forward.

Garrett stated that the impact equates to $0 .90 for Waste Management and Recycling monthly increase.

Culinary Water

Garrett stated that the main cost drivers for Culinary water are: Weber Basin Water increases (estimated at
14-15 % annually), Personnel and Overhead ( 5%), Capital Investment adjusted 3% for inflation and Debt
Service repayment. Garrett stated that we will have the final payment of the debt service obligation this
year. She proposes to take the payment capacity (around 89K) and put it back into Capital within the
Culinary Water system.

Garrett stated that the impacts equate to a $1.40 monthly increase.

Sanitary Sewer

Garrett stated that the largest cost driver within Sanitary Sewer is paying for the treatment of our sewage.
She stated that there is a 6% increase with the Sewer District, and it is expected to increase 6% annually
through 2031. She stated that the debt service requirements will reach full term this year to free up
$146,000 and just like with culinary water, the capacity will stay within the capital system.

Garrett stated that the impact equates to $1.40 monthly increase.

Storm Water

She stated that the increase to Capital Investment is the 3% inflationary cost. She stated that Overhead and
Personnel costs are expected to increase by 4%.

Garrett stated that the impact equates to $0.25 monthly increase.

Garrett stated that the overall impact to the final utility rate is $3.95 increase, bringing the monthly base
rate up 5% to $89.20.

Garrett stated that there have been a lot of changes with Truth-in-Taxation requirements. She stated that
there have been ups and downs with contract negotiations this year, but they are being worked through.
She stated that the next meeting will have economic assumptions, a timeline through August, and what
Public Relations efforts will be taken to get the major budget items out there.

Garrett stated that new legislation requires that the city make a statement that we are exploring Truth-in-
Taxation. She stated that an impact statement will be given to the public at that time.

The Work Session concluded at 6:51 p.m.

Date Approved City Recorder

Work session Minutes 04-14-26



City of
ASHINGTON 1 ERRACE
Utk

City Council

Staff Report

Author: Amy Rodriguez

Subject: CDBG SECOND PUBLIC HEARING

Date: 4-21-26 Admin Dept.
Type of Item: Public Hearing

Summary Recommendations: The City Council will hear public comment on the 2026 CDBG
Program Year- 500 West Trenchless Sewer Rehabilitation Project.

Questions from the audience need to be responded to (particularly those who may be
immediately impacted by the projects).

Description:

A.

B.

Topic: CDBG SECOND PUBLIC HEARING

Background:

CDBG requires that a second public hearing be held after an applicant has been notified
that their application has been funded by the Rating and Ranking committee (RRC) but
before the final application is due in May. The City was notified in late March that the
proposed Project was recommended for funding of a total of $215,795.

Analysis:
CDBG further requires that the second public hearing be conducted as follows:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PUBLIC HEARING

Mayor Allen opened the second public hearing for the CDBG program. Mayor Allen
stated that this hearing was called to allow all citizens to provide input concerning
the project that was awarded under the 2026 Grant Year Community Development
Block Grant Program.

The City has amended its capital investment plan and decided to apply for funds on
behalf of the 500 West Trenchless Sewer Rehabilitation Project located on 500 West
between 4800 South and 4400 South.

The Mayor introduced Amy Rodriguez as Grant Manager and Jake Meibos as the
Project Manager.

The Mayor explained that the application was successful in the regional rating and
ranking process and The 500 West Sewer Rehabilitation Project was awarded
$215,795 of the total project cost of $350,886.



The Mayor explained the project to those in attendance. The project consists of
rehabilitation of 1735 linear feet of a 12 inch concrete sewer main located on 500
West in between 4800 Soth and 4400 South.

The Mayor then asked for any comments, questions and concerns from the
audience.

The Mayor stated that copies of the capital investment plan are available if anyone
would like a copy.

If there are no more comments the hearing can be adjourned.



City Council ASHINGTON ] ERRACE
Staff Report
p Utk

Author: Jake Meibos

Subject: 2026 Street Maintenance Projects
Date: 4/21/2026

Type of Item: Discussion and Motion

Summary Recommendation: Award the contracts to selected contractor(s) for the 2026
Street Maintenance Project for the total bid amount of $335,469

Low bid received:

Asphalt repairs, street maintenance and paint striping: Staker Parsons Co. $335,469.

Description:
A. Topic: City Council approval is requested for awarding the 2025 Street Maintenance

Projects.

The scope of the projects consists of:
e Asphalt repairs
e Slurry Seal
e Seal Coats
e Chip Seals

Paint Striping in selected areas throughout the city

B. Background: The Local Technical Assistant Program (LTAP) conducted an Analysis
and Recommendation, which was established in August 2024. This analysis enabled us to
identify and prioritize maintenance project areas effectively. By leveraging the insights
from the LTAP analysis and assessing the specific regions, we have determined the
appropriate applications for each area. The 2026 maintenance projects will sustain an
average of 11.3 RSL.

C. Analysis: The engineers’ construction estimate including engineering cost and
contingency for completion of the 2026 Street Maintenance Project is $335,469
Quantities and cost estimates for each application were estimated using previous projects
and area calculations.

D. Department Review: Finance, Public Works, City Manager, Jones & Associates
Alternatives:
A. Approve the Request: Allow the award of the 2026 Street Maintenance Projects to said

contractor(s) for the total amount of $335,469 and authorize Staff and the Mayor to
execute all applicable contract documents.



B. Fiscal Impact: Road maintenance projects are funded by a variety of funding sources
such as Class C road funds distributed by the State. Road projects are reported in the
Roads Capital Project Fund 56.

The Road Maintenance budget balance to address current and future needs is
(GL#56-41-02) $1,003,416

Staker Parson Companies $335,469
Engineering (10%) 33,547
Contingency (10%) 33.547
Total Project cost $402,562

C. Deny The Request: By denying or delaying all or part of this request, the street
maintenance project(s) will not be completed. The projects may need to be rebid.

D. Continue the Item/Impact:

Significant Impacts: The 2026 Street Maintenance and Paint Striping initiative is
essential for ensuring both safety and durability of our roadways. Postponing
maintenance efforts will lead to the necessity for more intensive and costly interventions
to extend the lifespan of the streets. Additionally, clear and vibrant road markings play a
crucial role in preventing accidents and directing traffic effectively.

Consequences of not taking the recommended action: Not awarding the contracts in
this council meeting may delay the completion of the Street Maintenance Projects
throughout Washington Terrace City.



City Council ASHINGTON ] ERRACE
Staff Report
p Utk

Author: Jake Meibos

Subject: 2025 MWPP Annual Report
Date: 4/21/2026

Type of Item: Discussion / Adoption

Summary Recommendation: Adopt by resolution the Washington Terrace City 2025 Municipal
Wastewater Planning Program Annual Report. (MWPP)

Description:

A. Topic: Adopt by resolution the 2024 Washington Terrace City MWPP Annual Report.

B. Background: The Utah Division of Water Quality (DWQ) has been given primacy by
the Environment Protection Agency to oversee all wastewater discharges in the state of
Utah. All municipal entities with a Utah Pollution Discharge Elimination System (UPDE)
permit shall develop a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) to operate, maintain,
upgrade, and resolve overflow problems within the system. In 2015, the SSMP was
expanded to the requirements by the DWQ and adopted by resolution.

C. Analysis: The annual report evaluates on-going planning, operations, and financial
funding for the sewer system. The report also ensures the future planning, financial
requirements and daily operations are consistent with Sanitary Sewer Capital

Improvement Plan.

D. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact

E. Department Review: Public Works
Alternatives:

A. Approve the Request: Staff are recommending that Council approve the 2025 Municipal
Wastewater Planning Program Annual Report.

B. Deny The Request: Noncompliant with DWQ regulations.



CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
RESOLUTION 26-04

MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH,
APPROVING THE MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM
SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR 2025 .

WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah;

WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the City;

WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) adopted Rule 317-801 in
2012 which requires the City to implement the Utah Sewer Management Program in accordance with
state law;

WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) enforces the Utah Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) and provides the City a permit for the same;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the Municipal Wastewater Planning Program
Self- Assessment Report for 2025;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Washington
Terrace, Utah, as follows:

Section 1. Review and Adoption.

The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves the Municipal Wastewater Planning Program Self-
Assessment Report for 2025 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this
reference.

Section 2. UPDES Compliance.

That to the best knowledge of the City Council, the City has taken all appropriate actions necessary to
maintain collection system operation effluent requirements stipulated in the City UPDES Permit No.
UTG580110.

Section 3. Effective Date
This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Washington Terrace City Council this __ day of , 2026
Roll Call Vote
MARK ALLEN, Mayor Council Member Anna Davidson
City of Washington Terrace Council Member Cheryl Parkinson
Council Member Michael Thomas
ATTEST: Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder



What is the name of the Facility? *

Washington Terrace City
What is the Name of the person responsible for this organization?

*

Jake Meibos
What is the Title of the person responsible for this organization? *

Public Works Director
What is the Email Address for the person responsible for this organization? *

jakem@washingtonterrace.gov
What is the Phone number for the person responsible for this organization? *

8013958289

Please identify the Facility Location? *

Please provide either Longitude and Latitude, address, or a written description of the location (with area or
point).

5249 South 400 East Washington Terrace City

Are you a federal facility?
A federal facility is a military base, a national park, or a facility associated with a federal government
organization (e.g., BLM, Forest Service, etc.)

Yes

No

Financial Evaluation Section

As you begin this survey you must keep in mind which part of the wastewater system that you represent, unless
you represent it all (e.g., collections, treatment, or both). If you only represent the collection system please
respond to each question thinking only of collection system data as you proceed through this survey. The same
goes for treatment and both. If you get a question that does not apply to the part of the system which you
represent then leave it unanswered. However, please try to answer as many questions as you possibly can.

This section is completed by:
Jake Meibos

Are sewer revenues maintained in a dedicated purpose enterprise/district account?

Yes

No


mailto:jakem@washingtonterrace.gov

Are you collecting 95% or more of your anticipated sewer revenue?

Yes

No
Are Debt Service Reserve Fund requirements being met?

Yes

No

Where are sewer revenues maintained?

General Fund
Combined Utilities Fund

Other
What was the average MONTHLY User Charge for 2025?

39.33
Do you have a water and/or sewer customer assistance program (CAP)?

Yes

No

Are property taxes or other assessments applied to the sewer systems?

Yes

No
What is the yearly amount of revenue that you receive from these taxes?

NA
Are sewer revenues sufficient to cover operations & maintenance costs, and repair &
replacement costs (OM&R) at this time?

Yes

No



Are projected sewer revenues sufficient to cover operation & maintenance, and repair
and replacement costs for the next five years?

Yes

No

Does the sewer system have sufficient staff to provide proper operation &
maintenance, and repair and replacement?

Yes

No

Has a repair and replacement sinking fund been established for the sewer system?

Yes

No
Is the repair & replacement sinking fund sufficient to meet anticipated needs?

Yes

No

Are sewer revenues sufficient to cover all costs of current capital improvements
projects?

Yes

No

Has a Capital Improvements Reserve Fund been established to provide for anticipated
capital improvement projects?

Yes

No

Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next five
years?

Yes



No
Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next ten years?

Yes

No

Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next twenty
years?

Yes

No
Have you completed a rate study within the last five years?

Yes

No

Do you charge Impact fees?

Yes

No

If you charged Impact Fees, how much were they? =

If not a flat fee, use total collected impact fees for the year divided by the total number of entities who paid fees
that year.

533
Have you completed an impact fee study in accordance with UCA 11-36a-3 within the
last five years?

Yes

No
Do you maintain a Plan of Operations?

Yes

No



Have you updated your Capital Facility Plan within the last five years?

Yes

No
In what year was the Capital Facility Plan last updated?

2018
Do you use an Asset Management system for your sewer systems?

Yes

No
Do you know the total replacement cost of your total sewer system capital assets?

Yes
No

Replacement Cost =

Do you fund sewer system capital improvements annually with sewer revenues at 2%
or more of the total replacement cost?

Yes

No

What is the sewer/treatment system annual asset renewal cost as a percentage of its
total replacement cost?

NA

Describe the Asset Management System. Check all that apply:

Spreadsheet
GPS
Accounting Software

Specialized Software



What is the 2025 Capital Assets Cumulative Depreciation for your facility?

2,0820248
What is the 2025 Capital Assets Book Value?

Book Value = (total cost) - (accumulated depreciation)

3666375
Cost of projected capital improvements - Please enter a valid numerical value - 2025?

0

Cost of projected capital improvements - Please enter a valid numerical value - 2026
through 2030?

2009971
Cost of projected capital improvements - Please enter a valid numerical value - 2031
through 2035?

2004252
Cost of projected capital improvements - Please enter a valid numerical value - 2036
through 2040?

1425203
Cost of projected capital improvements - Please enter a valid numerical value - 2041
through 2045?

1425203

Purpose of Capital Improvements - 2025? Check all that apply.

Replace/Restore
New Technology
Increased Capacity
Purpose of projected Capital Improvements - 2026 through 20307 - Check all that
apply.
Replace/Restore
New Technology

Increased Capacity



Purpose of projected Capital Improvements - 2031 through 2035 Check all that apply.?

Replace/Restore
New Technology
Increased Capacity
Purpose of projected Capital Improvements - 2036 through 2040? - Check all that
apply.
Replace/Restore
New Technology

Increased Capacity

Purpose of projected Capital Improvements from 2041 through 20457 - Check all that
apply.

Replace/Restore
New Technology

Increased Capacity

To the best of my knowledge, the Financial Evaluation section is completed and
accurate.

True

False

Do you have a collection system? *

Yes

No

Collection System

Including piping and lift stations.

This form is completed by [name]?
The person completing this form may receive Continuing Education Units (CEUSs).

Jake Meibos



Part I: SYSTEM DESCRIPTION
Please answer the following questions regarding SYSTEM DESCRIPTION.

What is the largest diameter pipe in the collection system?
Please enter the diameter in inches.

12

What is the average depth of the collection system?
Please enter the depth in feet.

7

What is the total length of sewer pipe in the collection system?
Please enter the length in miles.

32
How many lift/pump stations are there in the collection system?

0

What is the largest capacity lift/pump station in the collection system?
Please enter the design capacity in gpm.

NA
Do seasonal daily peak flows exceed the average peak daily flow by 100 percent or
more?

Yes

No

What year was your collection system first constructed?
This can be an approximate guess if you really are not sure.

1954
In what year was the largest diameter sewer pipe in the collection system constructed,

replaced or renewed?
If more than one, cite the oldest.

Unknown

Part Il: DISCHARGES
Please answer the following questions regarding DISCHARGES.

How many days last year was there a sewage bypass, overflow or basement flooding in
the system due to rain or snowmelt?

0
How many days last year was there a sewage bypass, overflow or basement flooding
due to equipment failure, except plugged laterals?

0



Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO)

Class 1 - a Significant SSO means a SSO backup that is not caused by a private lateral obstruction or problem
that:

(a) affects more than five private structures;

b) affects one or more public, commercial or industrial structure(s);

¢) may result in a public health risk to the general public;

d) has a spill volume that exceeds 5,000 gallons, excluding those in single private structures; or

e) discharges to Waters of the State.

P~ o~ A~ o~

Class 2 - a Non-Significant SSO means a SSO or backup that is not caused by a private lateral obstruction or
problem that does not meet the Class 1 SSO criteria

How many Class 1 SSOs were there in Calendar year 2025?

0
How many Class 2 SSOs were there in Calendar year 2025?

0
Please indicate what caused the SSO(s) in the previous 2 questions.

NA
Please specify whether the SSOs were caused by contract or tributary community, etc.

NA

Part lll: NEW DEVELOPMENT
Please answer the following questions regarding NEW DEVELOPMENT.

Did an industry or other development enter the community or expand production in the
past two years, such that flow or wastewater loadings to the sewerage system
increased by 10% or more?

Yes

No

Are new developments (industrial, commercial, or residential) anticipated in the next 2
- 3 years that will increase flow or BOD5 loadings to the sewerage system by 25% or
more?

Yes

No

What is the number of new commercial/industrial connections in 2025?

2



What is the number of new residential sewer connections added in 2025?

4
How many equivalent residential connections are served?

2901

Part IV: OPERATOR CERTIFICATION
Please answer the following questions regarding OPERATOR CERTIFICATION.

How many collection system operators do you employ?

4
What is the approximate population served?

9800

State of Utah Administrative Rules requires all public system operators considered to
be in Direct Responsible Charge (DRC) to be appropriately certified at leaset at the
Facility's Grade. List the designated Chief Operator/DRC for the Collection System

by: First and Last Name, Grade, and email.
Grades: SLS17-1, Grade |, Grade Il, Grade Ill, and Grade IV.

Jake Meibos grade Il jakem@washingtonterrace.gov
Please list all other wastewater collection system operators with DRC responsibilities
in the field, by name and certification grade. Please separate names and certification

grade for each operator by commas.
Grades: SLS17-1, Grade |, Grade ll, Grade lll, and Grade IV.

Denzil Remington, grade 1V,
Please list all other wastewater collection system operators by name and certification

grade. Please separate names and certification grades for each operator by commas.
Grades: SLS17-1, Grade |, Grade Il, Grade Ill, and Grade IV.

Curtis Gerritsen grade Il, Dustin Goza grade Il
Is/are your collection DRC operator(s) currently certified at the appropriate grade for
this facility?

Yes

No

Part V: FACILITY MAINTENANCE
Please answer the following questions regarding FACILITY MAINTENANCE.


mailto:jakem@washingtonterrace.gov

Have you implemented a preventative maintenance program for your collection
system?

Yes

No

Have you updated the collection system operations and maintenance manual within
the past 5 years?

Yes

No

Do you have a written emergency response plan for sewer systems?

Yes

No
Do you have a written safety plan for sewer systems?

Yes

No

Is the entire collections system TV inspected at least every 5 years?

Yes

No
Is at least 85% of the collections system mapped in GIS?

Yes

No

Part VI: SSMP EVALUATION
Please answer the following questions regarding SSMP EVALUATION.

Have you completed a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP)?

Yes

No



Has the SSMP been adopted by the permittees governing body at a public meeting?

Yes

No
Has the completed SSMP been public noticed?

Yes

No

When USMP to be PNed

When will the USMP be Public Noticed?
MM

DD

YYYY

During the annual assessment of the SSMP, were any adjustments needed based on
the performance of the plan?

Yes

No

What adjustments were made to the SSMP (i.e. line cleaning, CCTV inspections,
manhole inspections, and/or SSO events)?

NA
During 2025, was any part of the SSMP audited as part of the five year audit?

Yes



No

If yes, what part of the SSMP was audited and were changes made to the SSMP as a
result of the audit?

NA
Have you completed a System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP) as
defined by the Utah Sewer Management Plan?

Yes

No
Does the collection system have more than 2,000 connections?

Yes

No

Has a fats, oil, and grease (FOG) or fats, oil, sand, and grease program been developed
by the collection system?

Yes

No

Part VII: NARRATIVE EVALUATION
Please answer the following questions regarding NARRATIVE EVALUATION.

Describe the physical condition of the sewerage system: (lift stations, etc. included)

The system is in adequate physical condition.
What sewerage system capital improvements does the utility need to implement in the
next 10 years?

Replace/Restore
What sewerage system problems, other than plugging, have you had over the last
year?

NA
Is your utility currently preparing or updating its capital facilities plan?

Yes



No
Does the municipality/district pay for the continuing education expenses of operators?

100%
Partially

Does not pay

Is there a written policy regarding continued education and training for wastewater
operators?

Yes

No

Do you have any additional comments?

NA
To the best of my knowledge, the Collections System section is completed and
accurate

True

False

Wastewater Treatment Options

You have either just completed or just bypassed questions about a Collection System. If this section was
bypassed by mistake, in the next question you will have the option to return to the questions on a Collection
System. If you are good with the progress up to now, next you will determine what kind of Wastewater
Treatment you have, or you can choose NO Wastewater Treatment.

What kind of wastewater treatment do you have in your wastewater treatment system?
Mechanical Plant
Discharging Lagoon
Non-Discharging Lagoon
No Treatment of Wastewater

Collections (go back to Collections)



Adopt & Sign
I have reviewed this report and to the best of my knowledge the information provided
in this report is correct. *

True

False

Has this been adopted by the City Council or District Board? *

yes

No

End of Survey

This is the end of the survey. Please make sure you have submitted your responses for each section. Thank you
for your participation.

Also, if you want a copy of your response to this survey you must click the button immediately below and you
must do it before you submit the survey.
Create your own Google Form

Does this form look suspicious? Report



https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=google.com&u=aHR0cHM6Ly9kb2NzLmdvb2dsZS5jb20vZm9ybXM_dXNwPW1haWxfZm9ybV9saW5r&i=NWViMzhjMDZiM2E4Y2QwZjgwODZlNTgw&t=OVZpN0RiMFkvRnFXOUxJNWpVTFZKQUtpRTZndUVzaGg2U08za05HNzRIaz0=&h=f91394feece344c98275b382dc4241cd&s=AVNPUEhUT0NFTkNSWVBUSVY0e1KxC8nv80j6FngyNoeJJxOoaicdYsbGd3C4hw_ziiqMpFl5sc6Id9QQI1y3YLKlRi98-5YFUvEI8C7aw97jyKk-n-FgIGJFzoFln4g63g
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=google.com&u=aHR0cHM6Ly9kb2NzLmdvb2dsZS5jb20vZm9ybXMvZC9lLzFGQUlwUUxTZTl3bTlaeVFRVXVPUVllZWR5dDJvaEZXUG5ON3JidnAwbjZNYUNvRVE1WThobnV3L3JlcG9ydGFidXNlP3NvdXJjZT1odHRwczovL2RvY3MuZ29vZ2xlLmNvbS9mb3Jtcy9kL2UvMUZBSXBRTFNlOXdtOVp5UVFVdU9RWWVlZHl0Mm9oRldQbk43cmJ2cDBuNk1hQ29FUTVZOGhudXcvdmlld2Zvcm0mdXNwPW1haWxfcmVjZWlwdF9hYnVzZQ==&i=NWViMzhjMDZiM2E4Y2QwZjgwODZlNTgw&t=S0xYdnM3a1NWMHJBRnE3RkVuZUt2U1hCa0gvazIrRmFmNVp1ZHQ1WFNpQT0=&h=f91394feece344c98275b382dc4241cd&s=AVNPUEhUT0NFTkNSWVBUSVY0e1KxC8nv80j6FngyNoeJJxOoaicdYsbGd3C4hw_ziiqMpFl5sc6Id9QQI1y3YLKlRi98-5YFUvEI8C7aw97jyKk-n-FgIGJFzoFln4g63g

Combined Statistics Report

Intake Type 03/01/26 to 03/31/26 WASHINGTON TER

Outcome Type 03/01/26 to 03/31/26 | WASHINGTON TER

ADOPTION T
OWNER NEW 1




WASHINGTON TERRACE FIRST QUARTER COMPARISON 2025 - 2026

14
13

Mar-26

Feb-26

14
76

Jan-26

quarterly totals for 2026

16

10

31

22
25

10

Mar-25

Feb-25

Jan-25

quarterly totals for 2025

55

24



- 265002181 EXTRAPATROL wt 5100 5625 W; ROHMER PARK 16:12:46 03/10/26
265001982 ANIMALCONTROL ~ WT  251E 4800 S; BONNEVILLE HIGH SI 11:25:17 03/04/26
265001985 ANIMAL CONTROL WT 139E 53508 12:52:52 03/04/26
265002018 ANIMALCONTROL WT 182W50008 08:02:44 03/05/28
265002167 ANIMALCONTROL  WT 75W 440085 13:24:39 03/10/26
268002184 ANIMALCONTROL WT 75W4400S 16:55:40 03/10/26
265002186 ANIMAL.CONTROL  WT 4581 5150W 17:25:52 03/10/26
265002200 BARKING DOG WT  232E50003 ' 20:53:56 03/11/26
265002235 ANIMALCONTROL ~ WT * 391 W 4800 S APT # 706, TERRACE 1 14:11:28 03/12/26
265001972 ANIMAL CONTROL ~ WT  07:29:27 03/04/26 RMK 5000 S300W : |
265002173 ANIMALCONTROL WT  14:55:2403/10/26 RMKKC 164 E4475 5 '
265002321 ANIMALCONTROL WT 19:15:42 03/15/26 361 E 46508
265002380 ANIMALCO WT  12:05:1803/17/26 RMK 518535 300 W ‘
265002392 ANIMALCO WT  15:36:23 03/17/26 CLO 46088 250W
26802425 ANIMALCO WT 13:17:53 03/18/26 RMK 145W 50005
26502427 CRUELTYAN'WT  13:56:07 03/18/26 RMK 424 W 5000 8
26502453 ANIMALCO WT  12:12:4403/18/26 RMK 250W 4900 §

26502456 ANIMALCO WT  13:08:59 03/19/26 RMK 177E52003
265802459 ANIMALCO WT  13:58:38 03/19/26 RMK 50405 525 W
26502461 ANIMALCOWT  13:39:32 03/19/26 RMK 437335 126W
26802468 ANIMALCO WT  16:09:4103/19/26 149E 52008
26502475 ANIMALCG WT  16:09:21 03/18/26 471W 52008
26502491 CRUELTY AMWT  18:20:5003/20/26 CLO 203 W 4900 S APT# 1
26502713 FOLLOWUFWT 12:54:05 03/27/26 RMK 203W4S00SAPT#1
26502420 ANIMALCONTIWT 11:37:03 03/18/2 RMK 5055 5 550 W
26502421 ANIMAL CONTIWT  11:45:00 03/18/2 RMK 43735 1256 W
26502557 CRUELTY ANIMWT - 10:50:57 03/21/2 RMK 203 W 490C SAPT # 1
26502562 ANIMAL CONTIWT  10:05:32 03/23/2 RMK 4383 5 276 W
26502569 ANIMALCONTIWT  13:20:34 03/23/2 RMK 203 W 4900 SAPT#1
26802572 ANIMALCONTIWT  13:39:0303/23/2 RMK 130 W 43008
26502575 ANIMALCONTIWT  14:22:45 03/23/2 RMK 4626 S RIDGELINE DR; 500 W

26502847 FOLLOW UP

WT

- 26502860 ANIMAL CONTRIWT

26502841 ANIMAL CONTRWT  11:39:5103/31/26 RMK 5055 S 55d VW

26502855 FOLLOWUP  WT 15:44:1003/31/26 OPN 5045 S 550 W

.13:41:5303/31/26 RMK
16:34:3403/31/26 CLO

163E5200S
376 W 45755




Mar-26

24
14
25

13

Feb-26

Jan-26
Dec-26

20
32

Nov-25

16
14
12
17

Oct-25

11
10

40

Sep-25

31

Aug-25

42

Jul-25
Jun-25
May-25

20
27
24
22
25

14

Apr-25
Mar-25

10

Feb-25

Jan-25
Dec-24

25

23
36
37
30
32
26
31

Nov-24

18
10

Oct-24

13
10

Sep-24

Aug-24

12

Jul-24
Jun-24
May-24

11

16
21

Apr-24
Mar-24

35
3

24
11

Feb-24

0

0

Jan 24
Dec-23

32
29

14
13

Nov-23



1

Oct -23

37

Sep-23

23

10

11

Aug-23

1

Jul-23
Jun-23
May-23

41

18
18
13

38
32

Apr-23
Mar-23

1

26
20
19
14

16

Feb-23

Jan-23
Dec-22

Nov-22

1

Oct-22

44
29
42

21

Sep-22

13
17
18

Aug-22

Jul-22
Jun-22
May-22

29
39
33
17
23
32

11

11

Apr-22
Mar-22

Feb-22

11

Jan-22

18
40

Dec-21

15
21

Nov-21

58
23
26
33
39
22
19

10

15

Oct-21

14
15
11
12

Sep-21

Aug-21

Jul-21

Jun-21
May-21

Apr-21
Mar-21

39
23
30
22

12

11

Feb-21

Jan-21

Dec-20

10

Nov-20



38
41

11
16

Oct-20

Sep-20

35

Aug-20

22
19
33
26
27
30
16
22
30
29
19
21

Jul-20
Jun-20
May-20

15

Apr-20
Mar-20

12
13
12

Feb-20

Jan-20
Dec-20

Nov-19

Oct-19

Sep-19

11

Aug-19

24
29
29
32
25

Jul-19
Jun-19
May-19

10

18
10

Apr-19
Mar-19

23
23
13
31

Feb-19

Jan-19
Dec-19

12

Nov-18

23
34
23
17
28
41

Oct-18

13

Sep-18

Aug-18

Jul-18
Jun-18
May-18

18
10

21

13

26
26
15

Apr-18
Mar-18

Feb-18



22
15

40

Jan-18
Dec-18

18
11
16
13
11

Nov-17

23
26
30
33
25

Oct-17

Sep-17

Aug-17

Jul-17
Jun-17

44
48

10
17

19
16
13
16

May-17

11

Apr-17
Mar-17

33
22

14

Feb-17

40
43

11

Jan-17 1
Dec-16 4
Nov-16 q
Oct-16

22
10
11

25
29
35
27
23
32

18

Sep-16 4
Aug-16 4

Jul-16
Jun-16 4

May-16

11

18
23

59
54
24
23
30
21

10

16
13

2
1
0

Apr-16
Mar-16

12

10
13
16

Feb-16
Jan-16
Dec 15

3
0

17
28
32

1
2
2
3
4
1
2

Nov 15

14
17
10
11

Oct-15

Sep-15

44

12

Aug-15
Jul-15
Jun-15

26
34
39

13
14

16

May-15



21

15

Apr-15

18
24
21

2
1
1
1

Mar-15

10

Feb-15

Jan-15
Dec-15

24
22
38
26
35

Nov-14

27

2
3
1
1
0
0
2
1
2
1
1

Oct-14
Sep-14

13
10

11
11
12

Aug-14

11 33

11

Jul-14
Jun-14
May-14

23
20
34
31

14
19
13

25

Apr-14
Mar-14

16
19

Feb-14

10

Jan-14
Dec-13

19
32

11

Nov-13

14
16

2
4
4
1
2
1
3
0
0
1
1

Oct-13
Sep-13

30
26
24
25
29
24
29
20
19
16
19
28
27
16
23

17

Aug-13

11
12
10

Jul-13

Jun-13
May-13

16

Apr-13
Mar-13

16
12

Feb-13

Jan-13
Dec-12

10
11
15

Nov-12

2
1
1
1

Oct-12
Sep-12

Aug-12

Jul-12



FERRRNNNRRRNNRRR NN RRRRRRNNNRNRNNRRRRNNNRRRNRRRRRRRONRRRROORORIIIIN

Sherift’'s Office Quarterly Report

Washington Terrace City Q1 2026

Integrity, Initiative, and Intelligence




INNEENNERNRENN NI NRNNENRRRNNENNRRRNRRRRNNNNRRNRRRNRRRNRRRRRRAnnnian

Pay Adjustments and Recruiting/Retention

Pay adjustment at the end of 2025, effective early 2026, has been a major
contributor to recruiting and retention efforts.

Lagging pay contributed significantly to departures from the agency.

Competitive pay with other agencies

Attractive to experienced lateral officers

Attractive to quality applicants wanting to enter law enforcement




INNEENNERNRENN NI NRNNENRRRNNENNRRRNRRRRNNNNRRNRRRNRRRNRRRRRRAnnnian

Enforcement Retention Rate

Enforcement Retention

Total Enf o

60

2023 86.67% 50
2024 75 17 77.33% .
2025 78 22 71.79% 20

10

2023 2024 2025

m Total Enf. Deputies Departures

T H E Gl O F




INNEENNERNRENN NI NRNNENRRRNNENNRRRNRRRRNNNNRRNRRRNRRRNRRRRRRAnnnian

Enforcement Division Hiring

oo |ired | eive

2023 6 4

2024 8 7

2025 15 13
2026 (so far) 9 ?

« Current Hiring/Training
« 5 lateral officers hired in 2026
« 2 hired entering law enforcement
« 2 cadefts currently in the academy,
graduation May 2026
« 6 deputies currently in field fraining

T H E Gl O F

16
14
12

AN O~

O N

hnﬂﬂ

2023 2024 2025 2026

m Hired © Active

« So far, 2026 has a higher
retention rate than previous
years, and is on track to beat
previous hiring numbers




FERRRNNNRRRNNRRR NN RRRRRRNNNRNRNNRRRRNNNRRRNRRRRRRRONRRRROORORIIIIN

Increased Staffing for Contract Cities

Enforcement Deputies by Year Contract Population by Year
120 90,000
100 80,000
70,000
. \./\\\._/‘/\" 60,000
60 50,000
40 40,000
30,000
20 20,000
0 10,000
X b © O 9 KX b D O N X M 0
S S S D 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022 2024
—e—Deputies Population
« 32 General Fund deputies » Population increases approximately
« 46 Contract City deputies 25,000 residents from 2010 to 2024

+ Conftract city deputies have gone from 26
deputiesin 2010 to 46 deputies in 2025.

* Number of contract city deputies has not kept

Wadhingtor J up with the demands of population growth.

T H E Gl O F




BERRRNNNRRRNRRR RN RRRRNRNNNRRRNRRRRRNNNRRRNRRRRRRONRIRREROROIOIHINN

Increased Staffing for Contract Cities
Outlook Goals

* Pay adjustment and ending a period * Match level of service to demand
of low staffing, retention/recruiting

difficulty, and strained operation:s. » [eresedl leny eneresrren]

coverage

« Crime rates, geography, population,
officer safety, and public expectation
are all factors in determining proper * Lower response times
staffing levels.

* Increased officer safety

* More fime for deputies to engage in

« Current ratio of .57 deputies per 1,000 proactive enforcement

SSa e e esidentsiisiooliow, + Overallincrease level of service to

* Increased staffing goal to increase contact city partners
level of service.

T H E Gl O F

Wiadhivgton



	staff_report CDBG 2nd Hearing.pdf
	Author:  Amy Rodriguez
	Subject:  CDBG SECOND Public hearing
	Date:  4-21-26
	Type of Item: Public Hearing
	Summary Recommendations:  The City Council will hear public comment on the 2026 CDBG Program Year- 500 West Trenchless Sewer Rehabilitation Project.
	Questions from the audience need to be responded to (particularly those who may be immediately impacted by the projects).

	City Council
	Staff Report

	staff report - MWPP Annual Report (2025).pdf
	Author: Jake Meibos
	Subject: 2025 MWPP Annual Report
	Date: 4/21/2026
	Type of Item: Discussion / Adoption
	Summary Recommendation: Adopt by resolution the Washington Terrace City 2025 Municipal Wastewater Planning Program Annual Report. (MWPP)

	City Council
	Staff Report

	AC QUARTERLY.pdf
	Sheet1
	Copy of current WT raw data.pdf
	Data  July 2012- Current


	staff report 2026 Street Maintenance Project.pdf
	Author: Jake Meibos
	Subject: 2026 Street Maintenance Projects
	Date: 4/21/2026
	Type of Item: Discussion and Motion
	Summary Recommendation: Award the contracts to selected contractor(s) for the 2026 Street Maintenance Project for the total bid amount of $335,469

	City Council
	Staff Report




